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Who We Are
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Zimbabwe (ICAZ / The Institute) was incorporated in 1918 under the 
Chartered Accountants Act, (Chapter 27:02).  ICAZ exists to support its members and to train and develop future 
Chartered Accountants for Zimbabwe.

ACTIVITIES
The Institute’s major activities comprise:
•	 conducting examinations for admission into the register for Chartered Accountants; 
•	 to encourage the study of accountancy by members and students;
•	 to represent the views of Chartered Accountants and;
•	 to preserve and maintain the integrity and status of the profession.
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Legal Advisors
Atherstone & Cook
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Auditors
Deloitte & touChe
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Wealth Management Centre
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Pomona, Borrowdale
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Council 
Tinashe Rwodzi – President    

Bothwell Nyajeka – Senior Vice President

Roy Chimanikire – Junior Vice President

Matthews	Kunaka	–	Chief	Executive	Officer
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Registrar
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Vision, Mission
 & Values

“To be the pre-eminent 
professional body in the 
development and promotion of 
accountancy, assurance and 
advisory services, business and 
good governance practices.”

VISIon



“To enhance the international standing and 
recognition	of	the	qualification	Chartered	
Accountant	(Zimbabwe),	for	the	benefit	of	its	
members, to support them in providing quality 
services in the public interest.”

MISSIon

VALUES

Responsibility
Taking ownership and being dependable.

Honesty
Upholding the truth, no half truths, putting across the right facts, being impartial and full 

disclosure.

Integrity
Acting in good faith, standing by what we believe in, independent, fair and transparent, doing 

the right thing, walking the talk in respect of all things.



Notice and
Agenda
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notiCe is hereby given that the ninety sixth Annual General Meeting of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Zimbabwe (ICAZ) will be held on Thursday 24 July 2014 at 1700 hours, at the Elephant Hills Hotel, Victoria Falls, to 

transact the following business:

1. APoloGies

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. ConFirmAtion oF minutes

To	confirm	the	minutes	of	the	95th	Annual	General	Meeting	held	on	Thursday	18	July	2013	at	17.00	hours	at	the	

Elephant Hills Hotel, Victoria Falls. 

3. AnnuAl rePort AnD FinAnCiAl stAtements

To receive the Annual Report of the Council, the President’s Statement and the Audited Financial Statements for the 

year ended 31 May 2014.

4. CounCil eleCtion

To receive the names of the members elected to Council.

5. APPointment oF AuDitors

To	propose	the	re-appointment	of	Deloitte	&	Touche	as	the	Institute’s	auditors	for	the	2014-15	financial	year.

6. AnY other Business 

Any other business which may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting of the Institute.

tinashe rwoDZi

President

Notice and Agenda

1 July 2014



Message from
the President
Tinashe RWoDZI
(2013-2014)
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It is such a great honour and privilege for me to give this report for 
the 2013-2014 presidential year. 

It	is	now	a	year	since	I	assumed	office	but	through	the	continued	
support you gave me, it felt like a short but memorable and eventful 
year.

As my tenure comes to an end, I want to express my sincere 
appreciation and gratitude to the ICAZ Presidium, Council, 
Committees, the Members and Secretariat for the invaluable 
contributions, participation and support as we travelled the journey 
together. It was indeed a humbling experience for me .

I give below an update on some of the major highlights of the 
year, which attest to the results of our collective efforts toward a 
common goal as we endeavor to achieve our strategic objectives.

ICAZ Council, at the beginning of the presidential year, adopted an 
updated strategy which will guide your Institute for the three years 
June 2013 to June 2016. The strategy is founded on the principles 
of protection of public interest and enhancement of member 
services and sets out the following major goals for the Institute 
over the three year period:

•	 Improve	and	strengthen	the	financial	status	of	the	Institute	
•	 Create a Centre of Excellence
•	 Improve and maintain the quality of members to international 

standards 
•	 Improve monitoring of CA’s in the market 
•	 Improve brand visibility and standing
•	 Enhance service to members 
•	 Improve	 efficiency	 and	 effectiveness	 of	 internal	 support	

systems 
•	 Increase influence in the local economy and global 

developments

This is a “live” strategy that Council will review and update annually.

In order for us to achieve these goals we require your continued 
support, engagement and contribution. I have a strong conviction 
that we will be able to take our Institute to greater heights in the 
coming years and it will remain one of the foremost accounting 
qualifications	with	global	recognition.	

new DAtABAse mAnAGement sYstem (imis)
The Institute successfully migrated over to a new Database 
Management System in April 2014. The initiative is in line with our 
quest to enhance member to Institute interactions, and vice versa. 
I implore you to fully take advantage of this robust system which 
is very user friendly. The logging of CPD hours, updating of your 
personal details, online payments of subscriptions, events and 
seminars have now been made easier.  We are kindly requesting 
members to embrace the new system and start navigating and 
using it. There was an e-mail with your new login details that was 
sent to all members for each of you to be able to access the system. 
Please contact the Institute if you have not received your new login 

details. We believe that the new system will bring the much 
needed convenience to you.

eDuCAtion
The	 Institute	 successfully	 held	 a	 Certificate	 Presentation	
Ceremony in March 2014. This saw the conferment of 
certificates	to	students	who	passed	the	Zimbabwe	Certificate	
of Theory in Accounting (ZCTA) and the Final Qualifying 
examinations written last year.

The pass rates were 64.2% and 70% for Public Practice 
Examinations	(PPE)	and	Final	Qualification	Examinations	(QEII)	
respectively. Though the pass rate is within the acceptable 
zone, it has failed to surpass the previous outstanding pass 
rates of 76.1% (PPE) and 71% (QEII). However, the pass rate 
is commendable and augments the Institute’s strategic focus 
goal “… to grow the ICAZ membership while maintaining quality 
and growing influence…”

The CTA pass rate for the 2013 examinations was 64.6% 
compared to 55.9% in 2012. This is commendable as it raised 
the ICAZ bar. 

In	 the	 Initial	Test	of	Competence	(ITC),	 formerly	Qualification	
Examination Part1 (QE1) examinations written in January this 
year, 128 out of 153 candidates passed.  This represents a 
pass rate of 83.7% compared to 71.1% last year same period. 
This was impressive and an all-time record pass rate.

The Education Committee continues to oversee the bedding 
down of the new education and training system and good 
progress has been made in this regard.

The Examination Board has successfully implemented the 
new examination structure which should aid our efforts in 
improving our examination pass rates while maintaining the 
highest standards.

memBershiP AnD memBer serviCes
Our Continuing Professional Development, Tax & Other 
Legislation and Public Relations Committees successfully 
hosted a number of courses, seminars and events aimed at 
training, sharing knowledge and developments and promoting 
the networking and interaction of our members. These 
are referred to in detail under the “engaging for influence”, 
“corporate social responsibility” “technical” etc topics 
elsewhere in this report.

The Investigation and Disciplinary Committees handled a 
couple of matters during the year. These committees’ work 
goes a long way in building public trust and enhancing the 
public standing of our profession.

We endeavor to formally incorporate into the ICAZ structure 
those of us who have done their training but are yet to pass 
the	 final	 professional	 examinations.	 Hence	 the	 introduction	
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of the “Articled Accountant” category that our New Membership 
Committee oversees. The PAAB Act is being amended to recognize 
this new category whose membership we expect to grow into the 
future.

In – house, our Human Resources and Audit & Finance Committees 
are doing a good job in overseeing our internal controls and delivery 
systems as we improve our service delivery to our members.

The Matebeleland and Mashonaland Societies continued to 
provide the networking platforms for our members, raise funds for 
corporate social responsibility programmes and host the winter 
school among other important member services activities. These 
societies need the support of each and every one of us in order to 
be	able	to	fulfill	these	duties	and	responsibilities.	
  
During the year, the Presidium and Council continued their drive 
to strengthen, network with and improve member services to our 
diaspora chapters (over half of our members are based outside 
Zimbabwe). To this end, the President and CEO visited the United 
Kingdom and United Arab Emirates chapters. There are plans 
underway to host an investor conference in October 2014 in 
collaboration with our South Africa chapter.  Interactions are also 
ongoing with our chapters in Canada, the Cayman Islands, USA and 

will be highly appreciated. This year’s winter school organisers, 
the Matabeleland Society, is bringing key economic players 
from Government, Commerce and Industry to interact with us 
at winter school. 

Plans are also underway to hold an Investors Conference in 
South Africa from the 2nd - 3rd of October 2014 in conjunction 
with our South Africa Chapter. Once again, we urge you to 
participate in this event as it will foster interaction as well as 
cross - pollination of experiences with our colleagues beyond 
the borders as we contribute towards economic growth.

enGAGinG For inFluenCe 
The ICAZ Council and other members of the profession are 
engaging government as we endeavor to add our skills and 
views to the various initiatives aimed at reviving our struggling 
economy. As part of this initiative, we have started engaging the 
Ministry of Finance and there are plans to extend this to other 
organs of Government. As pre – eminent professionals, we have 
unique	skills	and	qualifications	that	our	economy	needs	dearly.	I	
therefore strongly urge you in your individual capacities, through 
the various organisations that you are involved with and in your 
social circles, to actively engage government, business, labour, 
civil society etc for positive impact.

Through our Tax and Other Legislation Committee (TOLC) 
of Council, we contributed our views and suggestions to the 
national budget in the last quarter of 2013.

A TOLC sub – committee was also constituted to deal with 
changes to the Companies Act.

When the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange embarked on an exercise 
to revise and update its listing rules,  ICAZ technical committees 
and	 ICAZ	 members	 contributed	 significant	 comments	 to	 the	
proposed changes.

In April 2014, ICAZ and its members played a pivotal role in 
the inaugural Zimbabwe Accounting Conference (ZAC) held 
under the auspices of the Public Auditors and Accountants 
Board (PAAB). By having our Presidium, Council, Secretariat 
and members play key roles more than any other accounting 
professional body in promoting and marketing the conference, 
present and chair cessions, administer and sponsor the 
conference, we demonstrated clearly that we are the pre – 
eminent professional accounting  body in Zimbabwe.

In May 2014, the CEO and I attended the Pan African Federation 
of Accountants (PAFA) annual conference and general meeting 
in Duala, Cameroon where we engaged with PAFA and IFAC  
officials,	 including	 IFAC	 President	Warren	 Allen,	 and	 gave	 our	
input into the affairs and direction of PAFA. 

The ICAZ Committees hosted a couple of CFO Forums. These 
have	proved	popular	and	beneficial	 to	both	our	members	and	
non – ICAZ members of the business community as they bring 
together key players to present on, share ideas, discuss topical 
issues and endeavor to positively influence economic policy.

teChniCAl
The Technical Committees (the Accounting Procedures and 
the Auditing and Professional Standards Committees) came 

Australia.  

The Chartered Accountants Student Society (CASS) carried out 
a number of activities that help mould and network our future 
professionals and leaders, including corporate social responsibility 
and their successful recent winter school held in June 2014. 

Council	 is	 finalizing	 the	 constitution	 of	 an	 economic	 forum	
committee that will play a key role in providing economic updates, 
trends and analysis etc as part of enhancing services to our 
member.

The Institute, in the interest of the public, published the full 
ICAZ membership list in the various newspapers, in order to 
curb incidents of unscrupulous people who masquerade as its 
members. This was also meant to alert the market to the fact that 
passing examinations and being admitted an ICAZ member are two 
different things. After the advertisements, more than 20 candidates, 
some	of	whom	qualified	many	years	ago,	applied	for	membership.	
Many more are in the process of applying for membership.

May I ask each and every one of us to encourage all our colleagues, 
friends	 and	 relatives	 who	 are	 qualified	 but	 not	 admitted	 as	
members of ICAZ, to apply for membership. You are not a Chartered 
Accountant (Zimbabwe) till you have applied and been admitted a 
member by ICAZ.

The Institute will be publishing updated membership lists in the 
press at regular intervals while maintaining an updated members 
list on our website.

winter sChool
Winter School preparations are underway and it will be held from 
the 24th - 27th of July 2014 at Elephant Hills in Victoria Falls. 
We look forward to your participation as we will mainly focus on 
strategies to attract Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) to Zimbabwe 
to enhance economic growth. Your participation and contributions 
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and	cost	efficient.	This	 review	 includes	 learning	 from	our	mutual	
recognition partners like SAICA and ICAEW and consulting with 
development partners like the World Bank who work with and fund 
the development of other Institutes across the globe.

iCAZ-olD mutuAl FunDrAisinG GolF DAY
The annual fund raising golf day, held at Chapman Golf Club, in 
March 2014 was a resounding success with 28 teams participating.
This was a memorable assembly of highly admired “golf experts” 
from the profession and executives from commerce and industry 
who are not members of the profession. It was a good networking 
opportunity. Congratulations to Team CBZ who were the overall 
winners.

The event also offered a good opportunity to fund raise towards 
the Institute’s arm that primarily focuses on Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR), which is one of the essential elements of 
Good Governance. Old Mutual‘s participation as the Title sponsor 
of the event was highly valued.

CorPorAte soCiAl resPonsiBilitY
The Institute donated an assortment of essential and basic goods 
worth nearly US$10 000 to help victims of flooding in the Tokwe-
Mukosi area who have been relocated to Chingwizi camp in 
Mwenezi. 

On the same note, I would like to express Council’s appreciation to 
the Chartered Accountants Students Society (CASS), for donating 
various items to Harare Children’s Home worth over US$8 000  in 
April 2014. The involvement of CASS in such activities is highly 
laudable as it upholds our brand and shows that the profession will 
be left in good hands when the present generation moves on.

ConClusion
I express appreciation to The Minister and Ministry of Finance 
(our parent ministry), all the regulators and authorities and all our 
stakeholders for their support and guidance through the year.  

I profoundly thank the Presidium and Council for their wise counsel 
and guidance, all our committees for their hard work and invaluable 
contributions, the CEO and Secretariat for their hard work in running 
the Institute  and each and every one of you for your continued 
effort and support in upholding our Institute and profession.

tinashe rwoDZi
President

up with a draft Pension Fund audit report guidance paper that 
practitioners will use in the interim while the Institute continues 
to lobby with the relevant Ministry and Insurance & Pension 
Commission (IPEC) for legislative alignment of the Pensions and 
Provident Fund. This guidance is to assist the market to have a 
standard report for pension funds as there were inconsistencies 
and varied reporting for Pensions Funds.

The Committees also came up with guidance on sharing audit 
working papers between predecessor and incoming auditors 
that act as a guideline of what is expected of each auditor.

Our	 various	 committees,	with	 significant	 input	 from	members	
in commerce and industry and in the profession, continuously 
contribute to accounting and auditing standards setting by 
commenting on draft new and revised standards. 

Throughout the year, a number of CPD and other courses  on 
topical	 issues	 were	 held	 for	 the	 benefit	 of	 our	 members	 and	
the business community, covering technical and taxation 
developments and updates. 

mutuAl reCoGnition AGreements (mrAs)
This is one of the major ways by which your Council promotes 
the global image of the CA(Z) brand and the global standing of 
our members.

One of the best demonstrations of the good quality and 
reputation of our Institute and its members is recognition 
and acceptance by most of the top international professional 
accounting Institutes that have signed MRAs with us and are 
happy to have us as members of their institutes. 

To date we have signed MRAs with South Africa Institute 
of Chartered Accountants (SAICA), Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), the Canadian 
Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA), Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in Ireland (ICAI), Institute of Chartered Accountants 
Scotland	 (ICAS)	 and	 Hong	 Kong	 Institute	 of	 Certified	 Public	
Accountants (HKICPA) while discussions continue to renew our 
MRA with Australia.

I urge members to enhance their international recognition by 
applying for membership of these Institutes with whom we have 
MRAs.

our FinAnCes
There	has	been	some	 improvement	 in	our	financial	 results	 for	
the year. However, with a large receivables book, our Institute’s 
financial	 position	 remains	 susceptible	 to	 the	 economic	
environment and to our members paying up their subscriptions.  
Our	financial	health	into	the	future	will	depend	largely	on	us	as	
members paying our subscriptions and paying them on time.

our struCture
Change is the only constant in our operating environment and 
in our role and purpose. It is thus vital that we also continuously 
review the structure of our profession, including the pathways to 
the	CA(Z)	qualification,	so	that	we	remain	competitive,	effective	
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Report of
the Council
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REGISTRY

CounCil
The Council is the governing body of the Institute and is 
currently comprised of 22 members.  The Council meets 
on a monthly basis and makes decisions on the strategy, 
policy and direction of the Institute.  Council is made up 
of members from both outside and inside public practice.  
This combination of members gives the Council a balanced 
perspective to debate issues affecting the profession.

Council delegates some of its responsibilities to Standing 
Committees.  The committees have more time to focus on 
the matters referred to them by Council and will report back 
to Council on progress being made on the issues referred.

the exeCutive mAnAGement Committee
The Executive Management Committee is made up of the 
current President of the Institute, Tinashe Rwodzi (PwC), the 
Senior Vice President, Bothwell Nyajeka (TA Holdings), the 
Junior Vice President, Roy Chimanikire (Econet Wireless) 
and	the	Chief	Executive	Officer,	Matts	Kunaka.

Membership as at 01 June 2013 1 572

New Admissions – June 2013 to date 111
Deaths – June 2013 to date (3)

De-registrations – June 2013 to date 0

Resignations – June 2013 to date 0
Reinstated members 5
Membership as at 31 May 2014 1 685

Deceased members as of 31/05/2014 (Robert Dube, 
Geoffrey Vine, Tatenda Phillipah Munyurwa)

memBers

City members
Harare 675
Bulawayo 83
Gweru 5
Mutare 18
Kwekwe 6
Other 37
Total 824

Country members
South Africa 255

Canada 21
Bermuda 9
Cayman Islands 26

United Kingdom 147

Australia 52

Other 351
Total 861

Geographical spread of our Membership

Total Number of Members          1 685

Absentee

Local

Student Accountants (Articled clerks)
Number	of	Training	Offices 51
Student Accountants registered as at 31 May 2014 819
Registrations – June 2013 to date 212
Discharges – June 2013 to date 175
Cancellations & Suspensions – June 2013 to date 30

Accredited Training Offices
ICAZ	 currently	 has	 51	 Accredited	 Training	 Offices.	 	 TIPP	 Firms	
employ 697 Articled Clerks and TOPP Firms employ 122 Articled 
Clerks.

Re-accreditation of Training Offices
The Education Committee introduced the re-accreditation of 
training	offices	in	February	2014.		The	main	objective	of	accrediting	
a	training	office	is	to	allow	that	office	to	train	prospective	Chartered	
Accountants.		In	order	to	remain	accredited,	the	training	office	must:	

•	fulfil	the	criteria	for	accreditation	as	prescribed	by	the	ICAZ	
Education Committee from time to time; and

•	comply	with	all	the	provisions	of	the	Training	Regulations	
relating to accreditation. 

The	accreditation	of	a	 training	office	 is	valid	 for	a	specific	period	
based	 on	 the	 rating	 achieved	 when	 accredited	 for	 the	 first	 time	
or during the most recent re-accreditation visit. Continued 
accreditation	 is	 dependent	 on	 the	 office	 demonstrating,	 to	 the	
Institute’s satisfaction, through a process of re-accreditation site 
visits, that it continues to meet the accreditation criteria.

Ten	training	offices	have	been	reaccredited	since	the	beginning	of	
these reviews.
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EDUCATIon
Undergraduate Programme
The number of ICAZ undergraduate clerks currently enrolled is 147.  
The	numbers	continue	to	decrease	and	we	anticipate	that	firms	are	
now taking fewer “A” level students for articles.  The table below 
shows	the	previous	five	years’	enrolment	comparisons:

Year enrolment
2013 147
2012 188
2011 235
2010 269
2009 300

Qualifying Examinations
Enrolment and pass rates for Part I (now ITC), PPE and Part II 
Qualifying	Examinations	for	the	past	five	years	are	as	follows:

Initial Test of Competence (ITC) - Examination results pass rate 
comparisons	for	the	past	five	years	are	as	shown	below:

PPE -	 Pass	 rate	 comparisons	 for	 the	 past	 five	 years	 are	 as	
shown below:

Year %Pass rate enrolment no. Passed
2013 64.2 137 88
2012 76.1 134 102
2011 75.2 129 97
2010 80.5 41 33
2009 90.7 140 127

Tinashe Andrew Chigodo from PricewaterhouseCoopers took 
the District Society Prize for being the best student in TIPP 
(Auditing).

Blessing Gandari from Delta received the prize for the being the 
best TOPP (Financial Management) student for 2013.

Shivani Mahendra Anand from Deloitte & Touche was the best 
overall student in the January 2014 ITC examination.

Zimbabwe Certificate in Theory of Accounting (ZCTA)
A total of 117 students passed the ZCTA Level 2 exam of the 181 
who wrote all 5 modules. As a result, the 2013 pass rate of 64.6% is 
the best since the inception of ZCTA programme. The Table below 
shows	the	previous	five	years’	pass	rate	comparisons:	

Year %Pass rate enrolment Passed
2013 64.6 181 117
2012 55.9 143 80
2011 47.6 311 148
2010 33.4 323 108
2009 20.3 227 46

PUBLIC RELATIonS AnD MARKETInG
The Public Relations and Marketing Department is the Institute’s 
arm whose aim is to ensure that ICAZ gets good publicity in 
the media as well as overseeing that communication with 
members is effective. The Department works in liaison with other 
departments of the Institute to ensure that the said objectives 
are met.

During the period under review, it remained a priority to ensure 
that	 the	 Institute	 gets	 publicity	 and	 favourable	 profiling.	 	 The	
Institute witnessed positive coverage of events such as the CPD 

Year %Pass rate enrolment no. Passed

2014 (Jan) 83.7 153 128
2013 (Jun) 20.0 50 10
2013 (Jan) 71.1 156 111
2012 55.0 222 122
2011 62.0 216 134
2010 28.0 107 30
2009 54.3 173 94

Financial Management (QE II) – Pass rate comparisons for the 
past six years are as follows:

Year %Pass rate enrolment no. Passed
2013 70 20 14
2012 71 17 12
2011 85.7 14 12

2010 71.4 7 5

2009 55.6 9 5

2008 77.8 9 7

Student Awards
Marko Mahuni from Deloitte & Touche was the best overall 
student in the ZCTA level 2 2013 exams.

Tinashe Andrew Chigodo from PricewaterhouseCoopers was 
awarded the Duff Award of Merit for being the best overall PPE 
student taking into account both PPE and January ITC results 
for 2013.

It is pleasing to note that January 2014 ITC results were the highest 
so far recorded, and it shows that this was a very good group of 
students as these are the same students who attained the highest 
ZCTA results since the inception of the ZCTA programme. 
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The Chartered Accountant Magazine continued to be published 
with commendable support from advertisers.

TECHnICAL
Accounting Procedures Committee (APC) 
The	 Committee	 continued	 to	 focus	 on	 reviewing	 financial	
statements of quoted entities and communicating any 
shortcomings to the respective auditors and preparers with 
a view of maintaining and improving the quality of reporting in 
Zimbabwe. ICAZ is committed to monitoring and maintaining 
the quality of the CA brand. Areas that appear to have common 
shortfalls relating to International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) and International Standards on Auditing (ISA) were passed 
on to the CPD Committee for consideration in the CPD calendar.

The Committee continues to make contributions to the 
International	 Accounting	 Standards	 Board	 (IASB)	 on	 financial	
reporting Exposure Drafts that are issued from time to time.

ZSE Listing Rules
The Committee was heavily involved in the consultations that 
resulted in the draft ZSE Listing Rules which are expected to be 
finalised	before	the	end	of	the	current	year.		

Banking and Finance
The Banking and Finance Sub-committee continued to look at 
the challenges in the sector and to liaise with the Central Bank 
where necessary.

Changes in Committee Composition
The Committee is now being chaired by Mr. C. Mukondiwa 
and deputised by Mr. J. Jonga after the resignation of Mr. N 

seminars,	 Presentation	 of	 Certificates,	 the	 Golf	 Day	 and	 the	
Tokwe-Mukosi donation on national television, national papers 
and online papers.

In terms of the Chartered Accountants Act (Chapter 27:02), ICAZ 
has several obligations which include, inter-alia,  the following:
•	 to encourage the study of accountancy,
•	 to promote information and education on accountancy 

matters,
•	 to represent the views of the profession.

In our quest to promote accountancy among schools, we 
participated at the Ngatifunde-Lets Learn Expo in February 
2014. The CEO gave an address on how to become a Chartered 
Accountant. The purpose of this event was to offer school 
students and leavers an opportunity to learn about different 
career programs available that will enable them to choose 
their desired profession and build their careers through more 
informed decisions and better guidance, thereby helping them 
to realise their dreams.  Over 300 students attended the session. 
We believe the opportunity we got at the event worked well 
towards our objective of accountancy awareness considering 
the number of schools and students who were present. 

We continued with our renewed relationship with the 
Universities. During the period under review, sponsorship of 
prizes to graduating students was done to National University 
of Science and Technology and Africa University. 

.Mudzamiri. Mr. S. Murwisi also resigned from the Committee 
after several years of service to the Institute. 

Auditing and Professional Standards Committee (APSC)
The Committee continues to focus on matters that mainly affect 
members in public practice as well as make contributions to the 
IAASB on Auditing and other Professional Exposure Drafts that 
are issued from time to time.

Reporting for Pension Funds
The Committee issued a guidance paper meant to assist 
members with the reporting for pension funds given the 
divergence between the Pensions and Provident Fund Act 
(Chapter 24:09) and our current reporting framework (IFRS). 
It continues working with the Insurance and Pensions 
Commission  (IPEC) with the view of addressing the divergence 
between our reporting framework and our legislation in general. 
The guidance will allow for consistent interpretation of the 
Pension	Funds’	financial	reports.

Sharing of Audit Working Papers
In line with the spirit of professionalism as embodied in the 
International Auditing Standards and the Code of Ethics of 
Professional Accountants, the Institute has amended its by-
laws to make it mandatory that a preceding auditor should 
share their audit working papers with the incoming auditor if 
requested to do so. 

Changes in Committee Composition
The Committee is now being chaired by Mr. D. Marange who is 
deputized by Mr. P. Mithal after the resignation of Mr. Chimanikire 
as Chairman after years of dedicated service to the Institute 
through the committee. Mr. C. Madzima joined the committee 
in the year under review.

Tax and Other Legislation Committee (TOLC) 
The Committee continues to be the voice of the Institute 
on professional matters that are affected by tax and other 
legislation. 

Review of the Income Tax Act
The Committee was heavily involved in the consultations on 
the drafting of the proposed Income Tax Bill which had been 
earmarked to be effective from January 2014. The Committee 
hopes	to	be	involved	in	the	finalisation	of	this	legislation,	that	is	
current and in line with global business models.

Liaison with the Zimbabwe Revenue Authority (ZIMRA) and 
other authorities
The Committee meets regularly with the Ministry of Finance 
officials	 and	other	 authorities	 like	ZIMRA	and	 the	 IPEC,	 to	 try	
and clarify and rectify any challenges being faced by members 
and taxpayers. The committee continues to make contributions 
to policymakers around the national budget.

Tax Seminars
There were two tax focused seminars that were held in 
conjunction with the CPD Committee during the year.

Changes in Committee Composition
Mr. H. Des Fontaine is now the Chairman of the Committee 
being deputized by Mrs. Mawire after the resignation of Mr. 
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Tendai Masanzu, Manager Advisory, KPMG
Anesu Daka, Technical Director, Chartered Accountants Academy
Samuel Murwisi, Partner, Ernst & Young 
Jonas Jonga, BDO Zimbabwe Partner
Alban Chirume, ZSE CEO

3. CFO Forum (14 November 2013)

Topics:
•	Effective	cost	cutting	measures	and	management	of	cash	flows	
in turbulent times 
•	Investment	and	funding	in	Zimbabwe	-	Meeting	evolving	investor	
expectations.   
•	The	power	of	networking	in	business	-	how	to	make	the	most	of	
business	relationships	from	the	first	encounter
•	Thinking	beyond	the	current	liquidity	crisis	
•	Integrating	Budgets	with	entity	strategy	–	key	issues	
•	Reviving	the	Manufacturing	Industry	for	Sustainable	Growth

Presenters:
Rosina Hove - Liquid Telecoms, Head of Finance
Crispen Mawadza, World Bank
Patrick Kariwo, Consultant
Tony Hawkins, Economist
Umoja Phiri, Four Cubits Director
Hon. A. Mabuya, Deputy Minister of Industry & Commerce 

4. Tax Update seminar (23 January 2014)

Topics:
•	Analysis	of	the	2014	Budget	proposals,	
•	Tax	Compliance	Issues	
•	Tax	planning
•	2014	economic	outlook

Harare Presenters:
Dumisani Ngwenya, Tax Specialist
Maxwell Ngorima, BDO Tax Director
Virginia Mutsago, KPMG Tax Manager  
John Robertson, Economist 

Facilitator: 
Rameck Masaire, Ernst & Young Tax Manager 

Bulawayo Presenters:
Dumisani Ngwenya, Tax Specialist
Maxwell Ngorima, BDO Tax Director 
Abel Dube, Deloitte & Touche Tax Manager

5. Technical Update Seminar (4 March 2014)

Topics:
•	Practical	Application	of	New	Standards
•	Revised	Standards	
•	ZSE	Update

Harare Presenters:
Valerie Muyambo, KPMG Senior Manager
Lewis Hussein, PKF Partner 
Alban Chirume, ZSE CEO.

Rwodzi who was now focusing on his role as the President of 
the Institute. Mr. Munemo and Mrs. Chipunza resigned from the 
Committee after years of dedicated service to the profession. Mrs. 
Shaw and Mr. Shayahama were admitted into the Committee in 
the year under review.

Practice Review Committee
The Public Accountants & Auditors Board (PAAB), as the overseer 
of all Accounting and Auditing Boards, is now carrying out practice 
reviews. Most of the members of the ICAZ Practice Review 
Committee are sitting or reviewing at PAAB level.  The ICAZ 
Practice Review committee now meets only to deal with matters 
that may arise from the PAAB reviews. 

Investigations and Disciplinary Committee
There were six cases under investigation at the beginning of the 
current presidential year.  Of these, two cases were concluded by 
the Disciplinary Committee while one is still to be concluded. The 
three closed cases were due to the following reasons: absence of 
a prima facie case; case falling outside the jurisdiction of ICAZ; 
while the last one was closed due to failure to contact the alleged 
offender albeit not a member of ICAZ.  One new case was received 
during the year under review and is still underway.  All cases 
referred are dealt with according to the ICAZ rules and regulations. 

Continuous ProFessionAl DeveloPment

The following is a summary of the CPD seminars held during the 
period under review together with the names of Presenters and 
Facilitators:

1. Tax Update Seminar (10 October 2013)

Topics:
•	Withholding Tax – errors due misinterpretations
•	Transfer pricing 
•	The impact of the New Tax Bill on business – critical issues to 

note
•	Tax Compliance issues

Harare Presenters:
Max Mangoro, Ernst & Young Tax Partner
Tendai Mavima, Tax Management Services Managing Director
Charles Jaure, Zimra Technical Director

Facilitator: 
Christina Muzerengi, Grant Thornton Camelsa Tax Director

Bulawayo Presenters:
Peter Mgodi, Ernst & Young Tax Manager
Tendai Mavima, Tax Management Services Managing Director
Abel Dube, Deloitte & ToucheTax Manager

2. IFRS Update Seminar (31 October 2013)

Topics:
•	New	IFRSs	
•	Update	on	ZSE	Listing	Requirements

Presenters:
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Bulawayo Presenters:
Valerie Muyambo, KPMG Senior Manager
Chengetai Mashavave, Deloitte & Touche Senior Manager

Facilitator:
Tapiwa Chizana, Deloitte & Touche Partner

6. CPD Seminar (15 April 2014)

Topics:
•	Refresher	on	IFRS	for	SMEs
•	Sustainability	Reporting-GRI	Guidelines
•	Integrated	Reporting

Presenters:
Graham Cheater, Technical Director, Chartered Accountants 
Academy (CAA)
Rodney Ndamba, INSAF 

Facilitator: 
Tariro Mhuka, AMG Global Partner

7. CFO FORUM (25 May 2014)

Topics:
•	Leveraging	on	Mining	for	Economic	Stimulation	
•	Indigenization:	Benefits,	Equity	&	Empowerment	Roadmap	
•	 Corporate	 Governance,	 Ethics	 &	 Discipline-Foundations	 for	
National Success
•	The	Evolving	Role	of	CFO	-	from	CFO	to	CEO		
•	Directors	Disclosures	&	and	Responsibilities	towards	Financial	
Statements 
•	Motivational	talk

Presenters: 
Godknows Njowa, Deloitte & Touche South Africa 
Hon Francis Nhema, Minister Youth, Empowerment and 
Indigenisation
Tsitsi Mutasa, Zimlef Managing Consultancy 
Alvin Chikamba, CEO, The Outvest Group SA
Esther Antonio, Associate Director PricewaterhouseCoopers
Charlton Tsodzo, P.h.D

Facilitator:
Dickson Magombedze, KPMG Partner

Panelists:
Samuel Matsekete - Barclays CFO
Alex Makamure - Delta Company Secretary
Alfred Chiremba-Whelson Transport, Finance Director
Nqaba Mkwananzi, Ernst & Young Partner
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CHAPTERS

UnITED KInGDoM (UK) CHAPTER

Dumisani Mpunzi
Chairman
Dumi began his career at Ernst & Young (EY) Bulawayo. He then spent 3 years 
working	 across	 South	 Africa,	 USA	 and	 UK	 EY	 offices.	 Dumi	 currently	 works	 for	
Barclays Bank in London where he has spent 5 and half years and has held various 
roles within Internal Audit, Counterparty Credit Risk Management and Treasury. 

Prayer Nekati
Prayer completed his 3 year training with KPMG (Harare) 
and	 qualified	 as	 a	 Chartered	 Accountant	 in	 December	
2004.	He	left	upon	qualification	to	join	Ernst	and	Young’s	
Johannesburg	 office	 where	 he	 spent	 a	 year	 in	 the	
financial	services	division	before	moving	to	their	London	
office	where	he	currently	works	in	the	Banking	&	Capital	
Markets service line. He is presently on secondment at 
the Bank of England in the Prudential Policy Directorate.

Tendai Bwanya
Tendai began his career with Deloitte in 2000 where 
he	 trained	 and	 qualified	 as	 a	 Chartered	 Accountant.	
In 2005, Tendai joined Deloitte London’s Investment 
Management & Private Equity practice until the end of 
2013. Currently, Tendai works in Lloyds Banking Group’s 
Internal Audit function where he is a Private Equity 
specialist responsible for the bank’s Private Equity 
division, Lloyds Development Capital.

Tafara Nyaunzwi
Tafara	trained	and	qualified	as	a	Chartered	Accountant	
at Deloitte. He relocated to London in 2010 where he 
worked as an Audit Manager at Deloitte in the Investment 
Management and Private Equity division. He is currently 
a Fund Controller at Development Partners International 
LLP,	an	emerging	markets	private	equity	firm.

Tawanda Chikoore
Tawanda	Chikoore	trained	and	qualified	as	a	Chartered	
Accountant with KPMG Zimbabwe in 2008. He then 
joined KPMG Channel Islands where he spent three 
years before joining Barclays Bank Group Internal 
Audit in London. Tawanda is an Audit Manager in the 
Corporate Banking team.

Fortune Chigwende
Fortune began her career in 1996 with KPMG where 
she	 trained	 and	 qualified	 as	 a	 Chartered	 Accountant.	
In 2000 Fortune joined MBCA as Head of Internal Audit, 
and later on was heading the Risk Management team. 
From 2006 to 2011, Fortune worked for Ernst & Young 
LLP in various roles before her move to join Henderson 
Global Investors in 2011 where she is currently the Head 
of Internal Audit.

Golden Chibanda
Golden Chibanda joined EY London’s Banking & Capital 
Markets Group in Dec 2000 after completion of training 
and	 qualification	 with	 KPMG	 Zimbabwe.	 Currently	 at	
Barclays,	 Golden	 has	 been	 a	 consultant	 in	 financial	
services (global markets focus) for the last 10 years 
delivering strategic and regulatory-driven projects for 
investment banking clients across the Front to Back.

Ivo Batista
Ivo	 Batista	 completed	 his	 training	 and	 qualification	with	 KPMG	Zimbabwe	 in	 2001	 following	which	 he	 relocated	
to	 London	 and	 transitioned	 into	 financial	 services,	 holding	 a	 number	 of	 positions	 with	 BNY	 Mellon	 Investment	
Management, most recently covering business development and investment functions for global institutional clients.  
Ivo is also a CFA charter holder and a Financial Risk Manager (FRM) with the Global Association of Risk Professionals.  

UK Committee Members
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UnITED ARAB EMIRATES (UAE) CHAPTER
The ICAZ UAE Chapter was formed in 2013 with a great deal of enthusiasm and ambition reflected by the number of meetings 
and events held within such a short period of time. The Chapter has in many respects exceeded the expectations of its founding 
members	and	managed	to	attract	a	growing	membership	of	ambitious	qualified	young	Zimbabwean	accounting	professionals	
currently residing in the UAE. 

The highlight of the year was the visit to the UAE by the ICAZ president, Tinashe Rwodzi, and the ICAZ CEO, Matts Kunaka. A cocktail 
event held at a local hotel to mark the occasion was well attended by the Chapter members as well as potential members. The hotel 
location, with a clear view of the iconic Burj Khalifa, the world’s tallest building was in sync with the high standards and ideals that 
inspired the formation of the UAE Chapter. 

Also invited to the event was the Regional Director of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales (ICAEW), Peter 
Beynon. In his brief address to the guests, Peter was full of praise for the Chapter’s ambitions and expressed his desire to support 
the Chapter’s activities through invitations to ICAEW seminars and training courses.  Members and other attending guests were 
provided a unique opportunity to hear more about the Institute’s vision, developments back home, and investment opportunities for 
disaporans to play their part in the economic development of Zimbabwe. 

In November 2013, the Chapter organized a formal welcome event for new members held at the prestigious Dubai Polo and 
Equastrian Club set in the remote Arabian Ranches area of Dubai. At the event, the Chapter chairman Bernard Tapera  took the 
opportunity to  outline the vision for the Chapter and the strategy for achieving this vision which unanimously supported by all the 
members present. 

In December 2013, the chairman was a special guest at the Accountancy & Finance Awards function, an annual event hosted by the 
ICAEW to recognize achievement within and outside professional practice across the UAE. It was indeed an honour for the Chapter 
to be represented at such a prestigious event which drew participants and guests from the captains of industry, professional audit 
firms,	and	senior	government	officials.		

MASHonALAnD DISTRICT SoCIETY
In July 2013 Mash District Society organised and hosted a successful 2013 Congress under the theme, Igniting Global Relevance and 
Competitiveness through Sustained Recovery and Growth. 

The Mash Committee organised a year-end networking lunch in December 2013, which was well attended.

The	Committee	hosted	the	certificates	presentation	to	successful	2013	ZCTA	and	PPE	and	QE	candidates	in	March	2014,	where	the	
Guest	Speaker,	Mr.	Nyasha	P	Zhou,	implored	newly	qualified	PPE	&	QE	candidates	to	“engage,	engage,	engage”	in	order	or	remain	
relevant.

With Matabeleland District Committee responsible for organising and hosting the 2014 winter school, Mash Committee has been 
providing just an assistance role.

CHARTERED ACCoUnTAnTS STUDEnTS SoCIETY (CASS) 
Chartered Accountants Students Society (CASS) remains exemplary as a students’ arm of the Institute. During the period under 
review,	the	committee	elected	to	extend	its	term	of	office	by	6	months,	under	the	leadership	of	Batsirai	Mhuka	(AMG	Global),	so	as	to	
align its calendar year with the ICAZ calendar year.

•	 From the 20th to the 23rd of June 2013, the CASS committee held their annual CASS Seminar at the Carribea Bay Hotel in Kariba. 
•	 The	annual	soccer	season	commenced	on	the	3rd	of	July	2013	and	saw	8	firms	battle	it	out	for	the	title	of	the	Soccer	Champions	

of the year 2013. 
•	 The CASS Sports Day was held on the 30th of August 2013 which wrapped up the soccer season, where BDO emerged victorious 

and retained the Soccer Championship. The Sports Day also concluded the then CASS calendar year.
•	 CASS was involved in various community projects and chief among them was a donation of goods worth over $8000 to Harare 

Children’s Home on Sunday 20 April 2014.

In addition, the committee are in the process of planning activities to be held during the year such as the 2014 CASS Seminar and 
Sports	Day	with	the	aim	of	fostering	interactions	and	exchange	of	ideas	among	students	from	various	training	offices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Standing Committees of ICAZ are appointed for one year at the first 

Council Meeting in each Presidential year.  They focus on professional 

matters as delegated by Council.  The following Committees and their 

composition were in place during the period under review:

Corporate
Governance
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COUNCIL 

Member     M.A 
T.  Rwodzi – President    9/10
B. Nyajeka - Senior Vice President  7/10
R. Chimanikire – Junior Vice President 5/10
C. Kazembe     4/10
B. Njikizana    9/10
F. Kuipa      8/10
M. Makaya     6/10
D. Marange     5/10
B. Thorn      4/10
S. Ndhlovu    8/10
D. Gwande     4/10
E. Chisango    6/10
G. Zvaravanhu    6/10
M. Kunaka    8/10
N. Mudzamiri *    2/6
S. Gwanzura     7/10
Z. Kumwenda     5/10
T. Chizana     7/10
T. Chikohora     3/10
C. Chakona    3/10
B. Chikarakara     5/10
G. Neely     5/10
W. Mupanguri    6/10
* Resigned in January 2014

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE / 
DISCIPLINANRy COMMITTEE

Member     M.A
T. Rwodzi - Chairperson   8/9
B. Nyajeka    9/9
R. Chimanikire    5/9
M. T. Kunaka    8/9

EXAM bOARD

Member     M.A
C.B. Thorn - Chairperson   5/5
M. Harvey    5/5
V. Lapham    4/5
F. Kuipa*                          4/5
M. Kunaka    5/5
* Did not attend meeting as he was conflicted by 
matter under discussion. The Council applies strict 
rules to prohibit its members and other committee 
members from taking part in any discussions in 
which they have a conflict of interest.

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Member     M.A
A. Mubaiwa - Chairperson                         6/6
C. Muzondo                                                  3/6
M. Kunaka                                                              6/6
F. Pange                                                         3/6
F. Gwiza                                                                   4/6
E. Chisango                                                             5/6
E. Ravasingadi                                                       4/6
B. Raradza                                                               5/6
B. Thorn                                                                   4/6
G. Cheater                                                    3/6
T. Zimondi                                                    3/6
T. Mafunga                                                    4/6
D. Marange                                                   3/6
C. Maswi                                                        3/6

M.A. refers to Meetings Attended.

NEW MEMbERSHIP COMMITTEE

Member     M.A
D. Marange - Chairperson               3/3
C. Kazembe                                                            1/3
T. Mukadzambo                                            2/3
E. Dhenhere                                                            3/3
M. Kunaka                                                              3/3
M. Makaya*                                   0/1
* Resigned during the year

The	Standing	Committees	of	ICAZ	are	appointed	for	a	period	of	one	year	at	the	first	Council	Meeting	in	each	Presidential	
year.		ICAZ	takes	issues	of	corporate	governance	seriously	and	acts	with	transparency,	efficiency	and	accountability	
to its members and stakeholders.  

The following Committees and their composition were in place during the period under review:
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HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Member      M.A 

D. Gwande - Chairperson    5/5

M.T. Kunaka     5/5

M. Makaya     1/5

Z. Kumwenda     5/5

T. Chikohora     2/5

AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE

Member      M.A

G. Zvaravanhu - Chairperson   2/5

C. Kazembe     4/5

F. Kuipa      4/5

C. Chakona     4/5

M.T. Kunaka     5/5

PUbLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE

Member      M.A

S. Gwanzura - Chairperson    7/8

S.Ndhlovu     5/8

M. Kunaka     6/8

K. Bhaera     4/8

S. Chitehwe     5/8

A.Makamure     4/8

A. Chinhara     4/8

E. Bloch      1/8

Z. Zvenyika     1/8

m.A. refers to meetings Attended.

CASS COMMITTEE

Member      M.A

B. Mhuka (AMG Global) - President     4/4

T. Mudzengere (Ernst & Young) - Vice President   4/4

T. Matsika (BDO) - Treasurer                      -

T. Charamba (KPMG) - Secretary               3/4

G. Matavata (KPMG)- Projects                  3/4

M. Tembani (Ernst & Young) - Public Relations 4/4

Committee representatives from the various firms 
include:

N. Dzomba (Deloitte & Touche)                  2/4

L. Maponga (AMG Global)     3/4

S. Makuvire (HLB Ruzengwe)   4/4

B. Mangena (AMG Global)    2/4

F. Mudzviti (Deloitte & Touche)    3/4

T. Manyati (HLB Ruzengwe)   3/4

T. Mehlo (PricewaterhouseCoopers)   2/4

M. Tshuma (KPMG)    2/4

P. Dziva (Econet – TOPP)     2/4

A. Makusha (PricewaterhouseCoopers)  2/4

A. Chipoka (Old Mutual – TOPP)   2/4

T. Muchada (BDO)     3/4

N. Gumbo (Ernst & Young)     1/4

K. Sigogo (Baker Tilly Gwatidzo)   3/4

V. Garaba (BDO)      2/4

V. Matimba (GTI)     1/4

T. Sanyamahwe (GTI)    2/4

T. Mushosho (PricewaterhouseCoopers)   2/4

W. Chiondegwa (Tetrad-TOPP)    1/4

ACCREDITATION MONITORING TEAM

Member      M.A

C. Muzondo - Chairperson    3/3

T. Mafunga     3/3

F. Gwiza      3/3
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INVESTIGATIONS COMMITTEE

Member      M.A

S. Hammond - Chairperson   1/1

F. Kembo     1/2

V. Ndhlovu     1/1

M. Dube      4/5

J. Mushore     5/5

M.T. Kunaka     6/6

T. Ndebele     1/1

* Number of meetings vary from member to member as 

members have different cases to look into.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE

Member      M.A

C. Kazembe - Chairperson    4/4

T. Mhuka      3/4

S. Mushosho      2/4

M. Nyagomo*     1/4

T. Mukuku     0/4

M. Makaya     1/4

M. Kunaka     2/4

K. Lemani     0/4

* New Member

ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES COMMITTEE

Member      M.A

C. Mukondiwa - Chairperson   4/5

S. Murwisi*      2/3

L. Ganda      3/5

L. Nyajeka     3/5

S. Michael     3/5

B. Matamba      5/5

U. Phiri       3/5

C. Shoniwa      2/5

M. Kunaka     3/5

J. Jonga      3/5

G. Cheater      3/5

C. Ruzengwe     3/5

A. Daka      4/5

S. Nyanhongo     2/5

V. Muyambo     3/5

N. Mudzamiri*     0/2

* Resigned

AUDITING AND PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

Member      M.A

D. Marange  - Chairperson    4/4

P. Mithal - Deputy Chairperson   3/4

B. Matamba     4/4

M. Debeer     2/4

A. Mushosho*     2/4 

F. Manyangadze     1/4

D. Madhigi*     1/4 

E. Antonio*     2/4

C. Ruzengwe     2/4 

T. Mafunga     3/4

T. Mudede     2/4

F. Nyagwaya (Alternate to P. Gwatidzo)  2/4

C. Kazembe     2/4

P. Gwatidzo     0/4

E. Bvurere     1/4

* New Members

m.A. refers to meetings Attended.
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TAX AND OTHER LEGISLATION 
COMMITTEE

Member      M.A

H. Des Fontaine - Chairperson       4/4

T. Rwodzi **       0/1

N.V. Forsgate          1/4

P. Cawood           2/4

R. Masaire          2/4

S. Matoushaya          2/4

M. Ngorima          3/4

A. Makamure          3/4

M. Chipunza **         0/1

L. Taruvinga          2/4

M. Gotora          2/4

M. Lopes          3/4

C. Munemo **         0/1

T. Mavima          2/4

L. Mawire          2/4

C. Muzerengi          1/4

M.T. Kunaka          4/4

T. Mutsinze          2/4

D. Ngwenya          2/4

J. Chibwe          0/4

P. Dube            1/4

E. Tagara          3/4

L Shaw *          1/2

R. Shayahama *            -

* Joined during the year.

** Resigned during the year.

UK CHAPTER

Member      M.A

D. Mpunzi - Chairperson    5/7

P. Nekati      7/7

M. Mswabuki     3/7

T. Nyaunzvi     6/7

T. Bwanya     3/7

T. Chikoore     7/7

m.A. refers to meetings Attended.

MATAbELELAND DISTRICT SOCIETy

Member  

T. Chizana – Chairperson

S. Gwanzura

B. Chikarakara

F. Mguni

F. Jassat

J. Mafu

C. Mutale

L. Hlabangana

U. Mazengeza

MASHONALAND DISTRICT SOCIETy

Member    

H. M. Nhende - Chairman

S. Mushosho - Deputy Chairman

S. Chitehwe

T. Mudidi

W. Mandisodza

N. Mkwananzi

J. Jonga

Prospective Members 

F. Kamota

D. Magombedze

UAE CHAPTER

Member      M.A

B. Tapera - Chairperson    8/8

T. Mukonavanhu      8/8

G. Nengomasha      8/8
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF 
ZIMBABWE 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Zimbabwe 
(the “Institute”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 May 2014 and the statements of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in reserves and cash flows for the year then ended and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 31 to 51. 
 
Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Institute’s Council members are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by 
the Chartered Accountants Act (Chapter 27:02). This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and 
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; 
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

 

 
 
 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Zimbabwe as at 31 May 2014 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in a manner required by the 
Chartered Accountants Act (Chapter 27:02). 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe) 
 
27 June 2014 
 
01 July 2014
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31 May 2014 
 

      
  

   
2014 

 
2013 

        
Notes 

 
US$  

 
US$  

ASSETS 
           

             Non-current assets 
           Property and equipment 
      

   5  
 

321 077 
 

   353 750  

Intangible assets 
      

   6  
 

111 774    
 

   5 548  

             

        
  

 
432 851    

 
  359 298  

             Current assets 
           Inventories 
      

   7  
 

895     
 

15 597 

Accounts  receivable 
      

   8  
 

203 032    
 

   175 454  

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
   

   9  
 

1 655 
 

   1 655  

Cash and cash equivalents 
     

   10  
 

143 869     
 

   338 494  

             

          
349 451     

 
   531 200  

             Total assets 
        

   782 302 
 

   890 498  

             RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 
          

             Reserves 
           Accumulated surplus 
        

330 773 
 

142 698 

             Non-current liabilities 
           Borrowings 
      

   12  
 

-     
 

7 034 

             Current liabilities 
           Accounts payable 
      

  11  
 

444 084     
 

   707 817  

Borrowings 
      

   12  
 

7 445     
 

   32 949  

             Total liabilities 
        

451 529     
 

   740 766  

             Total reserves and liabilities 
       

782 302     
 

   890 498  

as at 31 may 2014
Statement of Financial Position

t. rwoDZi (PRESIDENT)

Date: 01 July 2014

m.t kunAkA (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER)
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for the year ended 31 may 2014

Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	and	Other	Comprehensive	
Income

 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the year ended 31 May 2014 
 

             

             

             

          
2014 

 
2013 

        
Notes 

 
US$  

 
US$  

             Revenue 
      

13  
 

1 485 154 
 

 1 218 806 

             Administrative expenses 
      

14  
 

(1 540 044) 
 

( 1 307 400 ) 

             Other income 
      

16  
 

195 563    
 

  247 972  

             Operating surplus 
        

140 673    
 

  159 378  

             Finance income 
      

 17 
 

72 791 
 

  20 476  

             Finance costs 
      

 17 
 

(25 389) 
 

(23 121) 

             Surplus for the year 
        

188 075    
 

156 733 

             Other comprehensive income for the year 
       

- 
 

- 

             

             Total comprehensive surplus for the year 
       

188 075 
 

156 733 
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for the year ended 31 may 2014
Statement of Changes in Reserves

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES 
For the year ended 31 May 2014 

 

         
Accumulated 

 

         
(loss)/surplus 

 

         
US$  

 

           Balance at 1 June 2012 
      

(14 035) 
 

           Total comprehensive surplus for the year 
       

156 733 
 

           Balance at 31 May 2013 
      

142 698 
 

           

           Balance at 1 June 2013 
       

142 698 
 

           Total comprehensive surplus for the year 
       

188 075     
 

           Balance at 31 May 2014 
      

330 773 
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for the year ended 31 may 2014
Statement of Cash Flows

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 31 May 2014 

             
             
          

2014 
 

2013 

        
Notes 

 
US$  

 
US$  

Cash flows from operating activities 
          Surplus for the year 
       

188 075     
 

156 733 

             Adjustments for: 
           Depreciation of property and equipment 

     
5  

 
43 472     

 
   35 527  

Amortisation of intangible assets 
     

6  
 

11 827     
 

    6 718  
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 

     
14 008 

 
   218  

Finance costs - net      (69 501)  (15 502) 
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

   
 -   

 
 (191)  

  
         

187 881 
 

183 503 
             
Changes in working capital:  

          Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 
      

7 
 

14 702 
 

   (198)  
Increase in accounts receivable 

      
8 

 
( 27 578) 

 
(58 691) 

(Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable 
     

11 
 

(263 733)     
 

75 912  
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 

       
(88 728)     

 
   200 526  

             Interest paid 
      

17  
 

(3 290) 
 

(4 974) 

             Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 
     

(92 018)    
 

   195 552  

             Cash flows from investing activities 
          Acquisition of property and equipment 
     

5  
 

(38 580)  (62 900) 
Acquisition of intangible assets 

     
6  

 
(118 053)  (2 905) 

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 
     

13 773  191  
Interest received 

      
17 

 
72 791 

 
20 476 

             
Net cash used in investing activities 

       
(70 069) 

 
(45 138) 

             Cash flows from financing activities 
          Repayments of borrowings 
       

(32 538) 
 

(9 930) 

          
 

  Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 
     

(194 625) 
 

   140 484  

          
 

  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
   

338 494 
 

   198 010  

          
 

  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
   

10  
 

143 869 
 

   338 494  
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for the year ended 31 may 2014
Notes to the Financial StatementsNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

for the year ended 31 may 2014        

1. GENERAL INFORMATION           

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Zimbabwe ("the Institute") is a statutory body incorporated under the 
Chartered Accountants Act (Chapter 27:02). It is the foremost accountancy body in the country and is a member body 
of the International Federation of Accountants ('IFAC') and the Pan African Federation of Accountants (' PAFA'). 
       

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.  
          

2.1. Basis of preparation and presentation         
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, ("IFRS"). 
The financial statements are based on statutory records that are maintained under the historical cost convention. 
             
       
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Institute's accounting 
policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the 
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate. The areas involving a 
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements. 
           
  
        

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)  

2.2.1  Accounting standards and interpretations adopted impacting the annual financial statements 
 

The Institute did not adopt any new or revised accounting standards or interpretations in the current year that would 
have had an impact on the amounts or disclosures reported in these financial statements. 
 

2.2.2  New and revised IFRSs mandatorily effective at the end of the reporting period with no material effect on the reported 
amounts and disclosures in the current or prior year 

 
The following new or revised IFRSs were mandatorily effective and adopted by the Institute as at the end of the 
reporting period, but did not have a material effect on the current or previously reported financial performance or 
financial position. 
 

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards 

 Amendments relating to government loans with a below-market rate of 
interest when transitioning to IFRS. 

 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures 

 

 Amendments enhancing disclosures about offsetting of financial assets and 
financial liabilities. 

 

IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

 The Standard establishes the principles for the presentation and preparation 
of consolidated financial statements when an entity controls one or more 
entities. 

 

IFRS 11 – Joint Arrangements  The Standard replaced IAS 31 and establishes principles for financial 
reporting by entities that have an interest in joint arrangements. 
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for the year ended 31 may 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont...)

 

IFRS 12 – Disclosures of 
Interests in Other Entities 

 

 The standard deals with the disclosure requirements regarding an entity, an 
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, investment in 
associates or other unconsolidated structured entities. 

 

IFRS 13- Fair Value 
Measurement 

 

 

 The standard provides a single framework, within which fair value is defined, 
provides guidelines on how to measure fair value and also provides 
guidelines on the required disclosures.  

IAS 19 Employee Benefits  

 

 

 The amendment deals with various aspects ranging from modification of 
accounting for termination benefits to enhanced disclosures about defined 
benefit plans. 

 

IAS 27 – Separate Financial 
Statements 

 The revised standard deals with the accounting and disclosure of an entity’s 
interest in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in the entity’s separate 
financial statements.  

 

IAS 28 – Investment in 
Associates and Joint Ventures 

 The revised standard prescribes the accounting for investment in associates, 
and also sets out the requirements for the equity method when accounting 
for investments in associates and joint ventures 

 
Annual Improvements (2009 to 
2011 Cycle) 

Deals with minor amendments to IFRS 1, IAS 1, IAS 16, IAS 32 and IAS 
34. 

 
2.2.3 Impact of standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective 

 
At the reporting date, the following new and/or revised accounting standards and interpretations were in issue but not 
yet effective:  
 
IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures 

Amendments requiring disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 9.  
(Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2015). 

 
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments Classification and measurement of financial assets  

(Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2015). 
Accounting for financial liabilities and de-recognition. 

(Effect for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015) 

 

IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

 

Amendments that relate specifically to investment entities. 

(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.) 

 

IFRS 12 – Disclosures of Interests 
in Other Entities 

Amendments that relate specifically to investment entities. 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.) 
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for the year ended 31 may 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont...)

 

IAS 19 Employee Benefits Amendments clarifying the requirements that relate to how 
contributions from employees or third parties that are linked to service 
should be attributed to periods of service. 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.) 

 

IAS 27 – Separate Financial 
Statements 

 

Amendments that relate specifically to investment entities. 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.) 

 

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: 
Presentation 

Amendments to application guidance on the offsetting of financial 
assets and financial liabilities. 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.) 

IAS 36 Intangible Assets Amendments arising from recoverable amount disclosures to non-
financial assets. 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.) 
 

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Disclosure
   

Amendments to novations of derivatives. 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.)  

Annual Improvements (2010 to 
2012 Cycle) 

Deals with minor amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 
16, IAS 24 and IAS 38. 
 

Annual Improvements (2011 to 
2013 Cycle) 

Deals with amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 3 and IFRS 13. 

IFRIC 21 Levies Provides guidance on when to recognise a liability for a levy imposed by 
a government. 

 
      

2.3 Foreign currencies 
 

2.3.1 Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the Institute operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in the United States of 
America dollar ("US$"), which is the Institute's presentation currency. 
 

2.3.2 Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 

2.4 Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost, less subsequent depreciation and impairment. Subsequent costs 
are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Institute and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during 
the financial period in which they are incurred. 
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for the year ended 31 may 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont...)

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated on the straight line basis to allocate the cost of 
each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life as follows: 
 
Buildings     40 years 
Motor vehicles     5 years 
Furniture and fittings    10 years 
Computer equipment    5 years 

 
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An asset's 
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
These are included in the statement of comprehensive income. 

2.5 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets comprise externally acquired computer software and are stated at historical cost, less subsequent 
amortisation and impairment. 
 
Computer software costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, ranging from 2 to 8 
years. 
 

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets 
Assets that have indefinite useful lives, for example land, are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for 
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment is recognised for the amount 
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  
 
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each 
reporting date. 
 

2.7 Financial assets 
The Institute classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, and at fair value through 
profit or loss. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every 
reporting date.  
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in 
this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in this category are classified as 
current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current. 
 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market.  They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting 
date. These are classified as non-current assets.  Loans and receivables are classified as "accounts receivable’’ in the 
statement of financial position. 
 

2.7.1 Recognition and measurement 
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date, that is the date on which the 
Institute commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are 
derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the 
Institute has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' 
category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Dividend income 
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as 
part of other income when the Institute's right to receive payments is established. 
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Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated on the straight line basis to allocate the cost of 
each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life as follows: 
 
Buildings     40 years 
Motor vehicles     5 years 
Furniture and fittings    10 years 
Computer equipment    5 years 

 
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An asset's 
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
These are included in the statement of comprehensive income. 

2.5 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets comprise externally acquired computer software and are stated at historical cost, less subsequent 
amortisation and impairment. 
 
Computer software costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, ranging from 2 to 8 
years. 
 

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets 
Assets that have indefinite useful lives, for example land, are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for 
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment is recognised for the amount 
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  
 
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each 
reporting date. 
 

2.7 Financial assets 
The Institute classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, and at fair value through 
profit or loss. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every 
reporting date.  
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in 
this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in this category are classified as 
current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current. 
 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market.  They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting 
date. These are classified as non-current assets.  Loans and receivables are classified as "accounts receivable’’ in the 
statement of financial position. 
 

2.7.1 Recognition and measurement 
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date, that is the date on which the 
Institute commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are 
derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the 
Institute has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' 
category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Dividend income 
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as 
part of other income when the Institute's right to receive payments is established. 

for the year ended 31 may 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont...)

2.7.2 Derecognition 
A financial asset is derecognised when the Institute loses control over the contractual rights that comprise the asset. A 
financial liability is derecognised when it is paid. 
 

2.7.3 Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 

2.7.4 Impairment of financial assets 
The Institute assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired.  A financial asset is impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of 
one or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition of the asset and prior to the reporting date (loss event) 
and that loss event has had an impact on the future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. 
 
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired includes observable data that comes 
to the attention of the Institute about the following loss events: 
 

a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; 
b) A breach of contract such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; 
c) It becomes evident that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; 
d) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulty; 
e) Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a 

portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be 
identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including: 

i. adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and 
ii. national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio. 

The Institute first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists. 
 
The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial 
asset’s original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a 
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment is the current effective interest rate determined 
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Institute may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair 
value using an observable market price. 

2.8 Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost 
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling 
expenses. 
 

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents 
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise: 

• cash in hand; 
• deposits held at call and short notice; and 
• balances with banks. 

Cash and cash equivalents only include items held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 
than for investing or other purposes. Cash and cash equivalents have a maturity of less than three months. Cash and 
cash equivalents are carried at cost which, due to their short term nature, approximates fair value. 

2.10 Accounts receivable 
Accounts receivable are amounts due from members’ subscriptions, students’ fees and other services provided for by 
the Institute. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle or if longer), they are 
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. 

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 
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2.11 Borrowings 
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated 
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest rate method. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Institute has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the statement of financial position date. 

2.12 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Institute has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it 
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
 
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using 
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 
 

2.13 Employee benefits 
 

2.13.1 Pension obligations 
The Institute participates in a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Institute 
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when 
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future 
payments is available. The Institute has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does 
not hold sufficient amounts to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior 
periods. 

The Institute and employees also contribute to the National Social Security Authority Scheme (NSSA). This is a social 
security scheme which was promulgated under the National Social Security Act. The Institute's obligations under the 
scheme are limited to specific contributions as legislated from time to time. 

2.13.2 Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are payable when the Institute terminates employment before the normal retirement date, or 
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Institute recognises 
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees 
according to a detailed formal plan without the possibility of withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result of 
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting date 
are discounted to their present value. 
 

2.14 Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the provision of services in the 
ordinary course of the Institute's activities. The Institute recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be 
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Institute and specific criteria have been 
met for each of the Institute's activity as described below: 
 

2.14.1 Subscriptions 
Revenue from subscriptions is recognised on an accrual basis.  
 

2.14.2 Education programmes 
Net income, comprising student fees received less direct expenses incurred, is recognised at the completion of the 
academic year to which it relates. At reporting date, fees received net of expenses incurred, in respect of the current 
academic year, are included in receivables or payables. The Institute has a standing arrangement with UNISA whereby 
ICAZ retains 40% of the module cost to cover administrative expenses for running UNISA programmes and 60% is 
remitted to UNISA. The Institute recognises 40% as revenue. 
 

2.7.2 Derecognition 
A financial asset is derecognised when the Institute loses control over the contractual rights that comprise the asset. A 
financial liability is derecognised when it is paid. 
 

2.7.3 Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 

2.7.4 Impairment of financial assets 
The Institute assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired.  A financial asset is impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of 
one or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition of the asset and prior to the reporting date (loss event) 
and that loss event has had an impact on the future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. 
 
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired includes observable data that comes 
to the attention of the Institute about the following loss events: 
 

a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; 
b) A breach of contract such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; 
c) It becomes evident that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; 
d) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulty; 
e) Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a 

portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be 
identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including: 

i. adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and 
ii. national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio. 

The Institute first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists. 
 
The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial 
asset’s original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a 
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment is the current effective interest rate determined 
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Institute may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair 
value using an observable market price. 

2.8 Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost 
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling 
expenses. 
 

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents 
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise: 

• cash in hand; 
• deposits held at call and short notice; and 
• balances with banks. 

Cash and cash equivalents only include items held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 
than for investing or other purposes. Cash and cash equivalents have a maturity of less than three months. Cash and 
cash equivalents are carried at cost which, due to their short term nature, approximates fair value. 

2.10 Accounts receivable 
Accounts receivable are amounts due from members’ subscriptions, students’ fees and other services provided for by 
the Institute. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle or if longer), they are 
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. 

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 
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2.14.3 Sales of services  
Sales of services are recognised in the period in which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the 
specific transactions assessed on the basis of actual services provided. 
   

2.14.4 Interest income 
Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is 
impaired, the Institute reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow 
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest 
income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate. 
 

2.15 Fair value measurements and valuation process 
Some of the Institute’s assets are measures at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of 
an asset, the Institute makes use of market observable data to the extent that it is available. Where this is not available, 
the Institute uses third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. 
 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

3.1     Financial risk management 
The Institute's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effect of changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates and interest rates. The Institute's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability 
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Institute. 
 
Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Council. Management identify and 
evaluate financial risks such as foreign exchange risk, interest risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. 
 

a) Market risk 

i. Foreign exchange risk 
The Institute is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures primarily with respect to the 
South African Rand ('ZAR'). 
 
Management aims to manage the Institute's foreign exchange risk against the functional currency. Foreign exchange 
risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that 
is not the Institute's functional currency.  
 
At 31 May 2014 the Institute had the following exposures to foreign currencies: 

 Bank balances –ZAR23 694, carried at US$2 289  
 Receivables –ZAR148 523, carried at US$14 350 

At 31 May 2014 if the US$ had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the South African rand with all other variables 
constant, the effect on profit for the year would have been US$148.62 higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign 
exchange gains/losses on translation of the rand denominated bank balances and receivables. 
 

ii. Price risk 
The Institute is not exposed to price risks. 
 

iii. Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
The Institute's interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Institute to 
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed 
rates expose the Institute to fair value interest rate risk. 
 
As the Institute's interest bearing assets do not generate significant amounts of interest, changes in the market 
interest rates do not have a significant direct effect on the Institute's income. 
 
Accounts receivable and payable are interest free and have settlement dates within one year. 

 

2.11 Borrowings 
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated 
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest rate method. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Institute has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the statement of financial position date. 

2.12 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Institute has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it 
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
 
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using 
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 
 

2.13 Employee benefits 
 

2.13.1 Pension obligations 
The Institute participates in a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Institute 
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when 
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future 
payments is available. The Institute has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does 
not hold sufficient amounts to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior 
periods. 

The Institute and employees also contribute to the National Social Security Authority Scheme (NSSA). This is a social 
security scheme which was promulgated under the National Social Security Act. The Institute's obligations under the 
scheme are limited to specific contributions as legislated from time to time. 

2.13.2 Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are payable when the Institute terminates employment before the normal retirement date, or 
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Institute recognises 
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees 
according to a detailed formal plan without the possibility of withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result of 
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting date 
are discounted to their present value. 
 

2.14 Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the provision of services in the 
ordinary course of the Institute's activities. The Institute recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be 
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Institute and specific criteria have been 
met for each of the Institute's activity as described below: 
 

2.14.1 Subscriptions 
Revenue from subscriptions is recognised on an accrual basis.  
 

2.14.2 Education programmes 
Net income, comprising student fees received less direct expenses incurred, is recognised at the completion of the 
academic year to which it relates. At reporting date, fees received net of expenses incurred, in respect of the current 
academic year, are included in receivables or payables. The Institute has a standing arrangement with UNISA whereby 
ICAZ retains 40% of the module cost to cover administrative expenses for running UNISA programmes and 60% is 
remitted to UNISA. The Institute recognises 40% as revenue. 
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2.14.3 Sales of services  
Sales of services are recognised in the period in which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the 
specific transactions assessed on the basis of actual services provided. 
   

2.14.4 Interest income 
Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is 
impaired, the Institute reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow 
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest 
income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate. 
 

2.15 Fair value measurements and valuation process 
Some of the Institute’s assets are measures at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of 
an asset, the Institute makes use of market observable data to the extent that it is available. Where this is not available, 
the Institute uses third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. 
 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

3.1     Financial risk management 
The Institute's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effect of changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates and interest rates. The Institute's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability 
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Institute. 
 
Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Council. Management identify and 
evaluate financial risks such as foreign exchange risk, interest risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. 
 

a) Market risk 

i. Foreign exchange risk 
The Institute is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures primarily with respect to the 
South African Rand ('ZAR'). 
 
Management aims to manage the Institute's foreign exchange risk against the functional currency. Foreign exchange 
risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that 
is not the Institute's functional currency.  
 
At 31 May 2014 the Institute had the following exposures to foreign currencies: 

 Bank balances –ZAR23 694, carried at US$2 289  
 Receivables –ZAR148 523, carried at US$14 350 

At 31 May 2014 if the US$ had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the South African rand with all other variables 
constant, the effect on profit for the year would have been US$148.62 higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign 
exchange gains/losses on translation of the rand denominated bank balances and receivables. 
 

ii. Price risk 
The Institute is not exposed to price risks. 
 

iii. Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
The Institute's interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Institute to 
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed 
rates expose the Institute to fair value interest rate risk. 
 
As the Institute's interest bearing assets do not generate significant amounts of interest, changes in the market 
interest rates do not have a significant direct effect on the Institute's income. 
 
Accounts receivable and payable are interest free and have settlement dates within one year.  

b) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause financial loss to the other party by failing to 
discharge a contract. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial instruments and deposits with banks 
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to members, including outstanding receivables and committed 
transactions. For banks and financial institutions, only well-established institutions with sound financial positions are 
used. Credit exposures are closely monitored for indications of impairment. 

The Institute's exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset is as 
follows: 

 
2014 

 
2013 

         
US$ 

 
US$ 

            Accounts receivable 
       

203 032 
 

   171 504  
Cash and cash equivalents  

       
143 869     

 
   338 494  

         
  

 
  

         
346 901     

 
   509 998  

            The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable 
as at 31 May 2014 approximates the carrying amount. 

      
         
            Analysis by credit quality of financial assets is as follows: 

      
            Neither past due nor impaired 

          -Cash and cash equivalents 
       

143 869    
 

338 494     

         
  

 
  

Past due and not impaired 
          -Accounts receivable 
       

203 032     
 

175 454 
 
Past due and impaired 

          - Accounts receivable 
       

198 661     
 

   107 615  
 

c) Liquidity risk 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Institute manages liquidity risk by 
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Institute may fail to meet its 
payment obligations when they fall due, the consequences of which may be the failure to meet the obligations to 
creditors.  The Institute identifies this risk through periodic liquidity gap analysis and the maturity profile of assets and 
liabilities. Where major gaps appear, action is taken in advance to close or minimise the gaps. 
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A maturity analysis of the Institute's financial instruments as at 31 May 2014 is as follows: 

   
On demand  

 
From 

 
From 

    
   

and less than 
 

1 to 6 
 

6 to  
 

More than 
  At 31 May 2013 

  
one month 

 
months 

 
12 months 

 
12 months 

 
Total 

   
US$ 

 
US$ 

 
US$ 

 
US$ 

 
US$ 

Assets 
           Accounts receivable 

          (excluding prepayments) 
 

-  171 504  -  -  171 504 
Financial assets at fair value 

 
         

through profit or loss 
 

1 655  -  -  -  1 655 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 
338 494  -  -  -  338 494 

   
         

Total assets 
  

340 149  171 504  -  -  511 653 

   
         

Liabilities 
  

         
Accounts payable 

  
687 015  -  -  -  687 015 

Borrowings  
  

1 253  28 175  10 555  -  39 983 

   
         

Total liabilities 
  

688 268  28 175  10 555  -  726 998 

            Liquidity gap 
  

(348 119)  143 329  (10 555)  -  (215 345) 

            
            At 31 May 2014 

           
            Assets 

           Accounts receivable 
          (excluding prepayments) 
 

-  
 

   -     
 

196 025  
 

-  
 

   196 025     
Financial assets at fair value 

          through profit or loss 
 

   1 655  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

   1 655  
Cash and cash equivalents 

 
   143 869  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
  143 869  

            Total assets 
  

   145 524  
 

   -  
 

196 025  
 

-  
 

  341 549  

            Liabilities 
           Accounts payable 

 
   444 084 

 
   -  

 
- 

 
- 

 
   444 084  

Lease  
  

-  
 

7 445  
 

   -  
 

-  
 

   7 445  

            Total liabilities 
  

   444 084  
 

   7 445  
 

   -  
 

- 
 

  451 529 

            Liquidity gap 
  

(298 560) 
 

   (7 445)  
 

196 025 
 

- 
 

(109 980) 
 
The liquidity gap will be covered by revenue from member subscriptions and education income. 
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d) Financial instruments by category 

      
2014 

 
2013 

         
US$ 

 
US$ 

Assets as per statement of financial position 
        Loans and receivables 

            
Accounts receivable (excluding prepayments) 

     
196 025         

 
 171 504 

Cash and cash equivalents 
       

143 869    
 

   338 494  

            

         
339 894     

 
509 998  

            Assets at fair value through profit or loss 
           

            Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
     

1 655     
 

   1 655  

            Total 
        

341 549    
 

   515 603  

            
            
            Liabilities as per statement of financial position 
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost 
 

        Accounts payable (excluding statutory liabilities) 
     

   444 084     
 

   613 143  

Borrowings  
        

-     
 

   173 845  

            Total 
        

444 084     
 

   786 988  
 

3.2. Capital risk management 
The Institute's objectives when managing capital (reserves) are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern 
in order to continue to provide benefits for members and other stakeholders. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Institute may adjust the amount of borrowings or investments it holds from time to time. 
 

3.3. Fair value estimation 
The carrying value less impairment provision of accounts receivable and payables are assumed to approximate their 
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future 
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Institute for similar financial 
instruments. 
 

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

4.1. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
The Institute makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by 
definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below. 
 

a) Useful lives of property and equipment 
The Institute's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its property 
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected lifecycles for these assets. Management will increase the 
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write down 
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been sold. 
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b) Impairment on accounts receivable 

The Institute reviews its accounts receivable to assess impairment on a regular basis. In determining whether an 
impairment should be recorded in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the Institute makes 
a provision for impairment using historical loss experience. 

 

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

   
Land and 

 
Motor  

 
Computer  

 
Furniture  

  

   
buildings 

 
vehicles  

 
equipment 

 
and fittings  

 
Total 

   
US$  

 
US$  

 
US$  

 
US$  

 
US$  

Year ended 31 May 2013 
          Opening net book amount 
 

  186 433  
 

   48 619 
 

   62 423 
 

   29 311  
 

   326 786  

Additions 
  

- 
 

   39 018 
 

  16 833  
 

   7 049  
 

   62 900  

Disposals 
  

- 
 

- 
 

(   59) 
 

(350) 
 

(  409) 

Depreciation charge  
 

( 4 003) 
 

( 14 265) 
 

(  12 373) 
 

(   4 886) 
 

( 35 527) 

            Closing net book amount 
 

   182 430  
 

   73 372  
 

   66 824  
 

   31 124  
 

   353 750  

            At 31 May 2013 
           Cost 
  

  200 100  
 

  97 118  
 

  96 485  
 

  44 385  
 

   438 088  

Accumulated depreciation  
 

(17 670) 
 

(   23 746) 
 

(  29 661) 
 

(  13 261) 
 

(   84 338) 

            Net book amount 
 

   182 430  
 

   73 372  
 

   66 824  
 

  31 124  
 

   353 750  

            Year ended 31 May 2014 
          Opening net book amount 
 

  182 430      73 372    66 824     31 124      353 750  

Additions 
  

-     2 730    34 075      1 775      38 580  

Disposals  
  

-  (15 823)  (  8 956)  (3 002)  (27 781) 

Depreciation charge 
 

( 4 003)  ( 18 906)  (  15 947)  ( 4 616)  ( 43 472) 

           
  

Closing net book amount 
 

178 427  41 373  75 996  25 281  321 077 

            At 31 May 2014 
           Cost 
  

200 100  78 758  106 285  39 829  424 972 

Accumulated depreciation 
 

(21 673)  (37 385)  (30 289)  (14 548)  (103 895) 

   
         

Net book amount 
 

178 427  41 373  75 996  25 281  321 077 
 
 

Depreciation expense of US$43 472 (2013: US$35 527) has been charged in 'administrative expenses' in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

         
2014 

 
2013 

         
US$  

 
US$  

Computer software 
          Opening net book amount 
       

5 548 
 

9 361 

Additions 
        

118 053 
 

  2 905  

Amortisation 
        

(11 827) 
 

( 6 718) 

Closing net book amount 
       

111 774 
 

   5 548  

         
 

  Cost 
        

134 394 
 

   16 341  

Accumulated amortisation 
       

(22 620) 
 

(10 793) 

Net book amount 
        

 111 774 
 

   5 548  
 
Amortisation of US$11 827 (2013: US$$6 718) is included in 'administrative expenses' in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income. 
 

7. INVENTORIES 

 
Fuel coupons 

        
272     

 

  
1 632   

IFRS books         623  13 965 
         895  15 597 
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8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

        2014  2013 
        US$   US$  
           
Member subscriptions 

       
401 693 

 
   200 390  

Less: allowance for impairment of member subscriptions 
   

       (247 212) 
 

(107 615) 

Member subscriptions-net 
       

154 481 
 

   92 775  

         
 

  Prepayments 
    

  
   

7 007 
 

   3 950  
Receivable from member firms 

       
69 238 

 
51 159  

Staff debtors        26 149  27 570 

         
102 394 

 
   82 679  

Less: Unallocated deposits 
     

(  53 843) 
 

- 

Other receivables-net 
       

48 551 
 

   82 679  

Total 
        

203 032 
 

   175 454  
 
The carrying amounts of the accounts receivable approximate their fair values and are denominated in US dollars.  

            As at 31 May 2014, member subscriptions receivable of US$203 032 (2013: US$175 454) were past due but not 
impaired. 

  

            The ageing of these receivables is as follows: 
        Greater than 90 days  

   
    67 220  

 
203 032  175 454 

  
                        As at 31 May 2014, member subscriptions receivable of US$247 212 (2013: US$107 615) were past due and impaired. 

   
Movements on the provision for impairment are as follows:                           

 
                  

     
            At beginning of year 

     
107 615 

 
   146 468    

Provision for receivables impairment 
     

139 597 
 

51 480    
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 

   
- 

 
(   90 333)   

         
   

At end of year 
      

247 212  107 615    
  
 

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

Listed securities 
        

  1 655   
 

   1 655  
 
Listed securities comprise equities held through the Institute's asset  
managers and the fair value is based on their current bid prices on  
the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange. 

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash at bank and on hand 
       

143 869 
 

   262 806  
Short-term deposits 

       
- 

 
   75 688  

         
143 869 

 
   338 494  
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11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

         2014  2013 
         US$   US$  
            
Amounts due to: 

           Public Accountants and Auditors Board 
     

26 058 
 

20 760 
South Africa Institute of Chartered Accountants 

     
62 059 

 
-  

Member subscriptions paid in advance 
     

166 678 
 

163 428 

Social security costs and other taxes 
       

17 655 
 

20 802 
Accrued expenses 

       
31 435 

 
5 970 

Leave pay 
        

37 154 
 

33 816 

Deferred revenue 
       

91 708 
 

261 948 
Other payables 

        
11 337 

 
201 093 

         
444 084 

 
707 817 

 

12. BORROWINGS 

Non-current 
           Finance lease liabilities 

       
-  7 034 

         
   

Current 
        

   
Loans from member firms 

       
-  20 653 

Finance lease liabilities 
       

7 445  12 296 

         
   

         
7 445  32 949 

Total borrowings 
       

7 445  39 983 
 
 

12.1. Finance lease liabilities 
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the 
lessor in the event of default. 

Gross finance lease liabilities-minimum lease payments:           
-Not later than 1 year 

       
10 276  15 044 

-Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 
     

-  7 523 

         
10 276  22 567 

Future finance charges on finance lease 
     

(2 831)  (3 237) 

         
   

Present value of finance lease liabilities 
     

7 445  19 330 

         
   

         
   

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: 
      Not later than one year 

       
7 445  12 296 

Later than 1 year and no later than 2 years 
     

-  7 034 
 
 

        
7 445  19 330 
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13. REVENUE 
 

       2014  2013 

       US$   US$  

          

Membership subscriptions and levies 
      

828 893 
 

692 845 

ZCTA, UNISA and QE examination commissions 
     

656 261 
 

525 961 

         
 

 
 

        
 

1 485 154 
 

1 218 806 
14. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Audit fee – UNISA certification 
       

10 693  5 693 
Legal fees 

        
2 664  31 926 

Computer costs 
     

20 654  17 365 
Depreciation and amortisation 

       
55 299  42 245 

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 
     

14 008  - 
Continuing Professional Development costs 

      
38 029  39 901 

Consulting fees 
        

3 880  7 007 
Motor vehicle expenses 

       
28 523  22 623 

Travelling, conferences and seminars 
      

56 344  27 761 
Subscriptions 

        
13 340  13 505 

Telephone and postage  
       

              27 149  22 251 
Assessor training  costs 

       
18 822  17 949 

Employee benefit expenses (note 15) 
      

664 015  663 196 
Provision for impairment of receivables 

     
133 603  18 048 

Public Accountants and Auditors Board levies 
     

80 600  94 967 
Education costs 

        
172 910  90 838 

Repairs and maintenance 
       

14 399  18 903 
IFRS handbooks 

       
13 239  9 839 

Printing and stationery 
       

20 043  27 802 
Canteen and housekeeping expenses 

     
20 158  23 505 

Graduation costs 
        

16 907  15 751 
Bank charges 

        
17 897  16 464 

General expenses 
        

13 432  13 316 
Public relations costs 

       
36 150  30 165 

Occupational costs 
       

13 026  14 282 
Other costs 

        
34 260  22 098 

           

        
1 540 044  1 307 400 
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 

        2014  2013 
        US$   US$  
           
Wages and salaries 

       
605 301  607 701 

Pension costs 
        

   
 - NSSA 

        
11 194  7 449 

 - Old Mutual Life Assurance 
       

47 520  48 046 

         
   

         
664 015  663 196 

16. OTHER INCOME 

Bad debts recovered        3 075  10 859 
Public relations 

       
35 840  62 047 

Photocopying income 
       

46 722  40 157 
Accounting professional training 

       
40 475  18 259 

Continuing professional development 
     

43 087  49 845 
Other income 

     
26 364  66 805 

         
   

         
195 563  247 972 

 
 

17. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 

 
Interest charged on overdue member accounts 

        
 68 190 

 
   13 108 

-Interest income on short term bank deposits 
     

4 601  7 368 
Total finance income 

        
72 791  20 476 

            
Interest expense: 

        
   

-Loans from member firms 
       

-  (4 069) 
-Finance lease liabilities 

       
(3 290)  (905) 

Net foreign exchange losses  
       

(22 099)  (18 147) 
Total finance costs 

        
(25 389)  (23 121) 

         
   

Net finance income/( costs) 
        

47 402  (2 645) 
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18. RETIRED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Zimbabwe Pension Fund 
    Both employees and the Institute contribute to a defined contribution plan which is 
    administered by a separate board of trustees. This fund is subject to the Pension and 
    Provident Funds Act (Chapter 24:09).   

        
            National Social Security Authority (NSSA) Scheme 

       The Institute and its employees also contribute to the National Social Security Authority 
Scheme. This is a social security scheme which was promulgated under the National Social 
Security Act. The Institute's obligations under the scheme are limited to specific contributions 
legislated from time to time. 

    
         

            Contributions to the schemes, recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
    were as follows: 

           
                2014  2013 
    US$   US$  
       
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Zimbabwe Pension 
Fund 

   
47 520  48 046 

NSSA 
       

11 194  7 449 

         
  

        
58 714  55 495 

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The following transactions were carried out with related parties: 
Key management compensation: 
 

Salaries and other benefits 
       

293 954  267 660 

Post-employment benefits 
       

5 000  27 649 

         
   

         
298 954  295 309 

            

Loans to key management         20 530  11 965 
 
 
 

20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
There were no capital commitments at reporting date. (2013: US$ nil) 
 

21. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
Management are not aware of any material events after the reporting date that may have a significant impact on the 
information contained in this report. 

 
22. GOING CONCERN                   

The Council Members have a reasonable expectation that the Institute has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Institute therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing its financial statements.  
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